No. 2008-CA-01082-COA

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI Appellee

VS.

BOBBY WAYNE WALLEY Appellant

ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of Wayne County

H. H. Klein, III, 1507 Hardy Street, Suite 101 P.O. Box 1914 Hattiesburg, MS 39403 (601)544-4900

No. 2008-CA-01082-COA

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI Appellee

'SA

Ybbellant BOBBK WAKNE WALLEY

ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of Wayne County

H. H. Klein, III, 1507 Hardy Street, Suite 101 P.O. Box 1914 Hattiesburg, MS 39403 (601)544-4900

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Bobby Wayne and Kala Walley were indicted by the Wayne County Grand Jury in a two (2) count indictment charging Statutory Rape and Lustful Touching of a Child in Wayne County Circuit Court Cause No. 06-88-K. On June 20, 2006, Bobby Wayne Walley and Kala Walley entered pleas of guilty to sexual battery of a child alleged in the indictment. On October 23, 2006, a sentencing hearing was held wherein Bobby Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, fifteen (15) years to serve, five (5) suspended. On October 23, 2006, at the same sentencing hearing Kala Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections three (3) years to serve, seventeen (17) years suspended.

Bobby Walley filed a Motion to Re-Sentence pursuant to the Mississippi Uniform Post-Conviction Collateral Relief Act which was denied on May 27, 2008. It is from the Order Denying Motion for Post-Conviction Collateral Relief that Bobby Walley brings his appeal.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

During the January 2006 Term of the Wayne County Grand Jury, Bobby Walley and Kala Walley were indicted in a two (2) count indictment charging Statutory Rape and Lustful Touching of a Child in Wayne County Circuit Court Cause No. 06-88-K. (RE 1)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit A) The indictment charged Kala Walley with Statutory Rape and Lustful Touching of a Child, and also charged Bobby Walley with Statutory Rape and Lustful Touching of a Child, all charges alleged to have been committed at the same time and sentencing from the same set of facts and circumstances.

On June 19, 2006, Bobby Walley executed a Petition to Enter Plea of Guilty in Wayne County Circuit Court Cause No. 06-88-K to charge of Sexual Battery of a Child, pursuant to an agreement with the State of Mississippi including a fifteen (15) year cap on any sentence of incarceration. (RE 4)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit B) Likewise, on June 19, 2006, Kala Walley executed a Petition to Enter Plea of Guilty in Wayne County Circuit Court Cause No. 06-88-K to a charge of Sexual Battery of a Child, pursuant to an agreement with the State of Mississippi including a five (5) year cap on any sentence of incarceration. (RE 10)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit C)

On June 20, 2006, Bobby Walley appeared in the Circuit Court of Wayne County Mississippi and entered an plea of guilty to sexual battery of a child. Likewise, on June 20, 2006, Kala Walley appeared in the Circuit Court of Wayne County Mississippi and entered a plea of guilty to sexual battery of a child.(RE 16)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit D)

On June 20, 2006, the Circuit Court of Wayne County Mississippi entered an Order Accepting Plea and Sentencing regarding Bobby Walley to the charge of sexual battery of a child. (RE 35)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit E) Likewise, on June 20, 2006, the Circuit Court of Wayne County Mississippi entered an Order Accepting Plea and Sentencing regarding Kala Walley to the charge

of sexual battery of a child. (RE 36)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit F)

On October 23, 2006, a sentencing hearing was held by Circuit Judge Robert W. Bailey. (RE 37)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit G) Bobby Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, fifteen (15) years to serve, five (5) years suspended. (RE 76)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit H) At the same sentencing hearing Kala Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, three (3) years to serve, seventeen (17) years suspended. (RE 80)(UPCCR Motion Exhibit I)

On May 31, 2007, Bobby Walley filed a Motion to Re-Sentence Pursuant to the Mississippi Uniform Post-Conviction Collateral Relief Act. (RE 84)

On May 27, 2008, Judge Robert W. Bailey entered an Order Denying Motion for Post-Conviction Collateral Relief without a hearing. (RE 175)

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Trial Court erred when it did not justify in the record the harsh and disproportionate sentence imposed on Bobby Walley as compared to the sentence imposed on Kala Walley at the same time for the same crime. When compared to the sentence imposed on Kala Walley, the sentence imposed on Bobby Walley violated Federal and State Law. There is nothing in the record to justify the additional twelve (12) years of incarceration received by Bobby Walley.

The Trial Court erred as the sentence imposed on Bobby Walley amounts to cruel and unusual punishment. The State of Mississippi presented facts, evidence and argument in the sentencing hearing on October 23, 2006 which submitted to the Trial Court that Bobby Walley and Kala Walley at all times acted in concert and conjunction with each other in committing the sex acts on the minor child. Specifically, the Trial Court never stated or considered that Bobby Walley's role and participation in the offense differed from Kala Walley's role and participation in the sex acts committed.

The Trial Court erred when it sentenced Bobby Walley, a male, to five (5) times the number of years of incarceration to serve in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, as compared to the co-defendant Kala Walley, a female. The sentences were imposed at the same time, for the same crime, by the same Circuit Court Judge and for the same level of participation in the crime. The face of the record reflects the only difference between defendants is that Bobby Walley is a male and Kala Walley is a female. The unjustified different sentences presents a prima facie case of gender discrimination in sentencing in violation of the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Untied States Constitution.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

I.

The Trial Court erred when it did not justify in the record the harsh and disproportionate sentence imposed on Bobby Walley

The Trial Court wholly failed to justify or explain in the record the harsh and disproportionate sentence imposed on Bobby Walley as compared to the sentence imposed on Kala Walley at the same time for the same crime. (RE 37) Bobby Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, with fifteen (15) years to serve and three (3) years supervised probation. (RE 76) At the same time and during the same sentencing hearing, Kala Walley was sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections, three (3) years to serve and seventeen (17) years suspended followed by three (3) years supervised probation. (RE 80)

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that no person shall be denied equal protection of the laws. The United States Supreme Court in **Solem v. Helm**, 463 U.S. 277, 103 S.Ct. 3001, 77 L.Ed.2d 637 (1983), set forth a proportionality analysis which applies when a threshold comparison of the crime committed to the sentence imposed leads to an inference of "gross disproportionality". **Solem** requires the following factors to be considered 1) the gravity of the offense and the harshness of the penalty; 2) the sentences imposed on other criminals in the jurisdiction; and 3) the sentence imposed for commission of the same crime in other jurisdictions. In this case, the gravity of the offense is not questioned. However, the harshness of the penalty when compared to the sentence received by co-defendant Kala Walley is harsh and grossly disproportionate. Bobby Walley specifically challenged the disproportionate sentencing in his

Uniform Post Conviction Collateral Relief Motion. (RE 84) The Trial Court denied Bobby Walley's Post Conviction Petition by erroneously relying upon his failure to protest his codefendant's plea bargain which included a five (5) year cap of incarceration. The issue is not the plea bargained "cap", but rather the sentence imposed by the Circuit Court. It is clear that the sentence of Bobby Walley and likewise co-defendant Kala Walley was determined by the Trial Court. (RE 4) (RE 10) (RE 16) The comparison of sentences in this case goes well beyond the **Solem** factor which requires comparison of sentences imposed on other criminals in the same jurisdiction or in other jurisdictions. In the case at bar, the sentences imposed involve co-defendants whose participation in the crime to which they plead guilty is exactly the same. The issue is not whether the sentence received by Bobby Walley is within the statutory limits, but whether there is iustification for the lesser sentence received by his co-defendant for the same crime at the same time. There is clearly a inference of gross disproportionality as discussed in Womack v. State, 827 So.2d 55, (Miss. App., 2002). In Womack, the Trial Court set forth specific reasons for the disparity between the sentence imposed on Womack and similarly situated defendants in the Fourth Circuit Court District. There is no difference between Bobby Walley and Kala Walley and their participation in the crime to which they plead guilty and were sentenced.

In **Davis v. State**, 724 So.2d 342 (Miss. 1988) the defendant was convicted of sale of cocaine within fifteen hundred (1500) feet of a church, and without any explanation, was sentenced by the Trial Court to sixty (60) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections. The Mississippi Supreme Court held the following:

"In summary, under the facts of this case and given the lack of justification for the sentence on the fact of the record on appeal, it is appropriate that the case be remanded for further consideration of the

sentence imposed, consistent with those principles declared in *Presley*, *McGilvery* and *Clowers* and in the spirit of *Solem*. Davis has in her brief listed possibly comparable cases in which far lesser sentences were imposed both in Copiah and in adjoining Pike Counties. Upon remand, these cases will no doubt be considered by the trial court. Trial counsel in other cases should not read the decision of the Court in this case to provide security when no defense is offered and no effort is made to present matters justifying what they and their clients deem to be appropriate sentences, nor should this decision be read as imposing new restrictions on what remains very broad discretion in sentencing matters."

The sentence was reversed and remanded for re-sentencing. In McGilvery v. State, 487 So.2d 67 (Miss. 1986), McGilvery and co-defendant Tanner were convicted for the same armed robbery charge. McGilvery was sentenced to forty-five (45) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections and Tanner was sentenced to twenty-five (25) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections. In McGilvery, as in the case at bar, the Trial Judge gave no explanation as to his reason for the difference in the sentences. The Mississippi Supreme Court remanded the case for a sentencing hearing by the Circuit Judge so that he could be given an opportunity to state for the record appropriate reasons for the disparity in the two sentences. Most importantly, the Court held that if there are none, then McGilvery's sentence should be reduced. Likewise, if the Trial Court in this case can provide no reasons for the disparity between the sentence imposed on Bobby Walley as compared the sentence imposed on Kala Walley, then Bobby Walley's sentence should be reduced.

The Order Denying Motion for Post Conviction Collateral Relief should be reversed and remanded, or alternatively the sentence imposed on Bobby Walley should be reversed and rendered, and he should thereafter be sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections with three(3) years to serve and seventeen (17) years suspended, followed by three (3)

years probation. Alternatively, the sentence on Bobby Walley should be reversed and remanded for sentencing consistent with the sentence received by co-defendant Kala Walley.

II.

The sentence imposed on Bobby Walley presents a prima facie case of gender discrimination.

The Trial Court erred when it sentenced Bobby Walley, a male, to five (5) times the number of years of incarceration to serve in the Mississippi Department of Corrections as compared to codefendant Kala Walley, a female. The issue of discrimination has been addressed by the United States Supreme Court in Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79, 106 S.Ct. 1712, 90 L.Ed.2d 69(1986) the Mississippi Supreme Court has applied the race neutral standard of **Batson** to gender discrimination in the selection of a jury. In Snow v. State, 800 So.2d472 (Miss. 2001) the Court spoke to the establishment of prima facia gender and race discrimination. Likewise, the principals of Batson, Snow, and a litany of federal and state cases prohibit discrimination in the judicial process. The Uniform Post Conviction Collateral Relief Motion herein establishes a prima facie case of gender discrimination which is not justified or explained by the Trial Court. The Order Denying Motion for Post Conviction Collateral Relief (RE 175) cites Sellars v. State, 963 So.2d 1183 (Miss. App. 2007) as controlling precedent. A full reading of Sellars reveals that the Petition for Post Conviction Relief filed therein failed because the Trial Court gave reasons and used its discretion in determining Sellars' sentence. In the case at bar, the Trial Court failed to give any reason to justify the disparity between the sentences imposed on Bobby Walley and Kala Walley.

The Order Denying Motion for Post Conviction Collateral Relief should be reversed and remanded, or alternatively the sentence imposed on Bobby Walley should be reversed and rendered,

and he should thereafter be sentenced to twenty (20) years in the Mississippi Department of

Corrections with three(3) years to serve and seventeen (17) years suspended, followed by three (3)

years probation. Alternatively, the sentence on Bobby Walley should be reversed and remanded for
sentencing consistent with the sentence received by co-defendant Kala Walley.

CONCLUSION

For these reasons, and any other reason this Court may find on the record, Bobby Walley's sentence should be overturned and he should be re-sentenced accordingly.