IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

BOBBY WAYNE WALLEY

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2008-CA-1082

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against an Order of the Circuit Court of Wayne County, Mississippi in which relief was denied on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The prisoner and his wife were indicted in a two - count indictment, which counts alleged that they had committed statutory rape and lustful touching of a child. On 19 June 2006, the prisoner executed a "Petition to Enter Plea of Guilty." In this petition, the prisoner indicated that he wished to enter a plea of guilty to sexual battery. The prisoner stated in this petition that he understood that the district attorney would recommend a fifteen - year "cap" on the sentence to be imposed by the Circuit Court upon the prisoner. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 15 - 19).

On that same day, the prisoner's wife also executed a "Petition to Enter Plea of Guilty."

In her petition, the prisoner's wife also sought to plead guilty to sexual battery. She understood that the district attorney would recommend a five - year "cap" on such sentence that the Circuit Court would imposed upon her. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 22 - 27).

The petitions were brought forward for a hearing before the Circuit Court. The court went over the prosecution's agreement with the prisoner, and the prisoner indicated that he understood it and entered no objection to it. The court further indicated that it intended to accept the prosecution's recommendation as to sentencing. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 36 - 37; 39). The prisoner's wife, who was present at the hearing as well, indicated that she understood the recommendation with respect to her case. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 38 - 39).

At the conclusion of the plea colloquy, the court accepted the plea and continued the case for sentencing. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 43).

At the conclusion of the sentencing hearing, the prisoner was sentenced to a term of twenty years imprisonment, with five years suspended, three years on supervised probation, and various monetary penalties. The prisoner's wife was sentenced to a term of twenty years imprisonment, with seventeen years suspended, three years to serve, and three years supervised probation. She was also amerced with various monetary penalties. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 85).

On 31 May 2007, the prisoner filed a "Motion to Re-sentence pursuant to the Mississippi Uniform Post - Conviction Collateral Relief Act." As grounds for relief, the prisoner alleged that his sentence amounted to cruel and unusual punishment in that he was sentenced to serve a fifteen - year term, whereas his wife was sentenced to serve a three - year term. He further alleged that he was subjected to sex discrimination, allegedly in violation of the Due Process and Equal Protection clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment. His prayer for relief included a prayer that he be sentenced to the same "to serve" term as his wife had been sentenced. (R. Vol. 1, pp.

5 - 11).

The Circuit Court denied relief on this motion without an evidentiary hearing in a detailed order. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 97 - 104).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. WAS THE SENTENCE IMPOSED AGAINST THE PRISONER DISPROPORTIONATE?
- 2. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ENGAGE IN SEX DISCRIMINATION BY IMPOSING A GREATER "TO SERVE" SENTENCE AGAINST THE PRISONER THAN THAT IMPOSED AGAINST HIS CO-DEFENDANT WIFE?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- 1. THAT THE FIRST ISSUE IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THE COURT; THAT THE SENTENCE IMPOSED AGAINST THE PRISONER WAS NOT DISPROPORTIONATE
- 2. THAT THE SECOND ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR IS NOT BEFORE THE COURT; THAT THE PRINCIPLES EMANATING FROM *BATSON v. KENTUCKY* AND PROGENY HAVE NO APPLICATION IN NON-JURY SENTENCING PROCEEDINGS

ARGUMENT

1. THAT THE FIRST ISSUE IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THE COURT; THAT THE SENTENCE IMPOSED AGAINST THE PRISONER WAS NOT DISPROPORTIONATE

In considering the two assignments of error brought here, we bear in mind that standard of review applicable to appeals from a denial of relief in post -conviction relief cases. *Sellars v. State*, 963 So.2d 1183 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007).

In the First Assignment of Error, the prisoner claims that his "to serve" sentence was disproportionate in comparison with that imposed against his wife. It is said that the trial court should have conducted a proportionality review pursuant to *Solem v. Helm*, 463 U.S. 277 (1983).

First of all, there was no issue raised at the time of sentencing about the prisoner's sentence. This being so, the issue could not be raised in post - conviction relief. *Tate v. State*,

961 So.2d 763, 767 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007). The First Assignment of Error is not properly before the Court. Secondly, the prisoner did not in his motion demonstrate what evidence he would produce to establish all of the factors of a proportionality enquiry. Specifically, he utterly failed to indicate how he would establish the length of sentences imposed for sexual battery in other jurisdictions. The only sentence discussed was the prisoner's wife's sentence. This was insufficient to establish the factors of such an enquiry. Nor has the prisoner established that a fifteen - year "to serve" sentence for the felony of sexual battery upon a child is grossly disproportionate to the crime. On the other hand, the Mississippi Supreme Court has held that a thirty-year term for this felony is not disproportionate. *Davis v. State*, 510 So.2d 794 (Miss. 1987).

Even assuming that the First Assignment of Error was before the Court, notwithstanding the foregoing reasons why it is not, there is no merit in it. The prisoner's sentence was well within the limits set for the form of sexual battery he committed. Miss. Code Ann. Section 97-3-101 (Rev. 2006). Where a sentence is within the limits set by statute, it is not a cruel and unusual punishment. *Tate, supra*.

As pointed out by the Circuit Court in its order denying relief on the prisoner's motion, the court accepted the fifteen - year "cap" negotiated by the prisoner and the prosecution. Had the "to serve" provision of the agreement been unacceptable to the prisoner, then he could have refused to agree to that term of the agreement and opted for trial. What is before the Court is in effect an attempt by the prisoner to renege on his agreement. However, he simply cannot have it both ways: He cannot on one hand enter into an agreement, have no objection to it during the plea colloquy and especially during the sentencing hearing, yet be heard to complain of it later in post - conviction relief.

The prisoner appears to suggest that there was an obligation on the part of the Circuit Court to explain why the prisoner was given a lengthier "to serve" sentence. Assuming for argument that there is an obligation in every case on the part of sentencing courts to give reasons for the sentence imposed, the prisoner failed to object to any alleged failure on the part of the trial court to set out its reasons. By having failed to object in a timely fashion, the prisoner waived the issue. *Wells v. State*, 698 So.2d 497, 514 (Miss. 1997)(Any claim is waived by the failure to contemporaneously object).

Nonetheless, the Circuit Court did explain its reasons. It stated that it had reviewed exhibits, and the video apparently made by the prisoner and his wife as they sexually battered the girl, and it considered the testimony that had been presented during the sentencing hearing. The court felt that the sentences it imposed were appropriate in view of what it had seen and heard. (R. Vol.1, pp. 84 - 85)

In the event, however, that this Court should determine that the First Assignment of Error is properly before the Court, and further determine that the sentence imposed against the prisoner was grossly disproportionate, or determine that the court failed to adequately explain the reasons for the sentences, there is no need to remand this case in order to permit the Circuit Court to explain its reasons. The reason this is so is because the Circuit Court did that in the Order it entered in denying relief on the prisoner's motion. We adopt the Circuit Court's order here. In this Order, the court stated that it felt that the sentences imposed were appropriate in view of what it had seen of the exhibits and video and what it had heard in the sentencing hearing. The other reason was because the prisoner agreed to the term of imprisonment, knowing that his wife would receive a lesser "to serve" term. This being so, the Circuit Court can hardly be faulted for having accepted the agreement the prisoner made.

The Appellant agreed to the sentencing provisions; he did not object to the sentence on the ground raised here at the time of sentencing. He may not be heard to do so here.

The First Assignment of Error is utterly without merit.

2. THAT THE SECOND ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR IS NOT BEFORE THE COURT; THAT THE PRINCIPLES EMANATING FROM *BATSON v. KENTUCKY* AND PROGENY HAVE NO APPLICATION IN NON-JURY SENTENCING PROCEEDINGS

In the Second Assignment of Error, the prisoner accuses the Circuit Court of having practiced sex (or gender) discrimination against him. There was no objection during the sentencing hearing on this ground. It may not be raised in post - conviction relief. *Tate, supra.*

Assuming the Second Assignment of Error is before the Court, there is no merit in it.

Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79 (1986) and progeny, it is hardly necessary to say, concern the process of choosing jurors. Those cases have utterly nothing to do with sentencing issues. Snow v. State, 800 So.2d 472 (Miss. 2001) provides nothing to demonstrate the applicability of Batson to a non-jury sentencing hearing.

There is not one word in this record to suggest that the Circuit Court engaged in sex discrimination against the prisoner. On the other hand, it is quite clear that the difference in the "to serve" portions of the sentences meted out to the prisoner and his wife were directly the consequence of plea bargains entered into by the prisoner and his wife. The Circuit Court cannot possibly be faulted for having accepted what the prisoner and his wife agreed to.

It may be that the Circuit Court did not address this issue at the sentencing hearing. But this is hardly surprising in view of the fact that the issue was never raised. The court did address the issue in the Order denying relief on the motion for post - conviction relief. Thus, in the event that this Court should find some error in the Circuit Court's failure to divine this issue during the sentencing hearing, there is no need to remand this case. The court has explained its reasons in

the Order denying relief.

CONCLUSION

The Order of the Circuit Court denying relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief should be affirmed.